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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Good

          3  afternoon. Sorry for the little mishmash of things,

          4  but we have a Council meeting this afternoon.

          5  Welcome all of you folks on the perimeter there.

          6                 My name is Madeline Provenzano and I

          7  Chair the Committee on Housing and Buildings.  Today

          8  the committee will consider four items:  Proposed

          9  Reso. 907-A, proposed Reso. 911-A, M-608 and Intro.

         10  No. 429.

         11                 Proposed Reso. 997-A is a resolution

         12  opposing the Bush administration's FY 2004 budget

         13  proposal to convert the Section 8 housing voucher

         14  Choice Program into state administered block grants.

         15  The resolution also calls upon the New York State

         16  Congressional Delegation to oppose bills HR 1841 and

         17  Senate 947 which would implement this proposal.

         18                 The committee will hear from the

         19  Chair of the New York City Housing Authority,

         20  representatives of the New York Housing Conference,

         21  representatives of the Public Housing Alliance and

         22  other interested parties with regard to proposed

         23  Reso. No. 907- A.

         24                 Proposed Reso. No. 911- A is a

         25  resolution to amend the contract between the City of
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          2  New York and Mutual Redevelopment Houses, Inc.,

          3  a/k/a Penn South, one, to allow the housing company

          4  to impose a capital assessment of $960 per room

          5  payable in a period of 48 months beginning July 1st,

          6  2003 and, second, to modify the language with regard

          7  to succession and occupancy rights in the housing

          8  company.

          9                 M- 608 is in support of this

         10  amendment and is a communication from HPD.

         11                 The committee expects to hear from

         12  representatives of the Department of Housing,

         13  Preservation and Development, representatives of the

         14  Board of Managers at Penn South and from tenants

         15  with regard to proposed Reso. No. 911- A and M- 608.

         16                 Finally, this is the second hearing

         17  on Intro. No. 429, a local law to amend the

         18  Administrative Code of the City of New York in

         19  relation to area eligibility limitations on benefits

         20  pursuant to Section 921- A of the real property tax

         21  law.

         22                 Intro. No. 429 would continue the

         23  geographic area eligibility limitations for 421- A

         24  tax benefits in the Manhattan Exclusion Zone below

         25  96th Street through the year 2007.
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          2                 421- A tax benefits are authorized

          3  under state law and are intended to promote the

          4  construction of new multiple dwellings.  Under New

          5  York State law the City Council may amend and adopt

          6  certain local laws pertaining to eligibility.  Since

          7  1984 the city has limited eligibility in certain

          8  geographic areas, namely Manhattan south of 96th

          9  Street to roughly 14th Street.  New multiple

         10  dwellings in the  so- called Exclusion Zone are

         11  eligible for the benefit only if construction is

         12  carried out with substantial government assistance

         13  or if 20% of the units located in the building

         14  receiving the tax benefit are affordable to low and

         15  moderate income households.  This restriction will

         16  expire on July 1st, 2003 unless the law is extended.

         17                 Intro. No. 429 would extend this

         18  provision until December 31st, 2007.  Without the

         19  provisions contained in Intro. No. 429, 421- A tax

         20  benefits will still be available but the city

         21  requirements for affordable housing will expire.

         22                 In addition, this bill would extend

         23  the current provisions of law that would authorize

         24  the granting of 421- A tax benefits for the

         25  construction of multiple dwellings in Manhattan
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          2  locations where the base floor area ratio is 15 or

          3  more as of right.  Thus, 421- A tax benefits could

          4  be used on projects in the city's most densely zoned

          5  areas in midtown and lower Manhattan.  The bill

          6  would extend the current provisions that expire on

          7  October 1st, 2003 until December 31st, 2007.  No

          8  further testimony is anticipated with regard to

          9  Intro. No. 429.

         10                 If you wish to testify today before

         11  the committee on any of these bills please sign in

         12  with the Sergeant- at- Arms.  We are expecting to

         13  vote on these matters today.

         14                 I have some changes to the original

         15  Reso. 907 which Terzah Nasser will read into the

         16  record.

         17                 MS. NASSER:  Hi.  Terzah Nasser,

         18  counsel to the Committee on Housing and Buildings.

         19  Just briefly, proposed Reso. 907- A is different

         20  from the original Reso. 907 in the following ways:

         21  Number one, Reso. 907- A was streamlined.  Number

         22  two, the title was changed, whereas the original

         23  reso. Called upon the United States Senators Schumer

         24  and Clinton to oppose the congressional bills, H.R.

         25  1841 and S. 947 proposed Reso. 907- A calls upon the
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          2  entire New York State Congregational Delegation to

          3  oppose those same bills.

          4                 Number three, a factual correction

          5  was made. Reso. 907 had incorrectly stated that

          6  approximately 85,000 households in New York City

          7  currently receive Section 8 vouchers, whereas

          8  proposed Reso. No. 907- A correctly states, this is

          9  according to our information, that the number is

         10  approximately 102,000 families.

         11                 Finally, four, with the help of NYCHA

         12  additional information was included within proposed

         13  Reso. 907- A with respect to local and national

         14  officials and organizations that also oppose the

         15  administration's HANF grant block plan proposal.

         16  Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you,

         18  Terzah. I would like to acknowledge Council Member

         19  Gale Brewer, a member of the committee, Council

         20  Member Margerita Lopez, who is the sponsor of

         21  proposed Reso. No. 907.  We have our Chair, Tino,

         22  who will start us today.  Welcome.

         23                 MR. HERNANDEZ:  Thank you.

         24  Chairperson Provenzano, members of the committee,

         25  good afternoon.  I am Tino Hernandez, Chairman of
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          2  the New York City Housing Authority.  With me this

          3  afternoon are Douglas Apple, NYCHA's General Manager

          4  and Harold Schultz, Special Counsel to the

          5  Department of Housing Preservation and Development.

          6            Thank you for this opportunity to testify

          7  in support of Resolution 907- A introduced by

          8  Council Member Lopez and co- sponsored by several

          9  Council members including members of this committee.

         10    The City Council resolution opposes the federal

         11  administration's FY '04 budget proposal to eliminate

         12  the Section 8 housing voucher Choice Program and

         13  replace it with the Housing Assistance for Needy

         14  Families, known as HANF, block grants to the states.

         15                 We support this resolution calling

         16  upon Congress to oppose bills S. 947 and H.R. 1841

         17  which would implement HANF.  New York City has much

         18  at stake in the deliberations. Opposition to the

         19  HANF proposal is one of the priorities of Mayor

         20  Bloomberg's federal legislative agenda.  In fact,

         21  just this week I testified in opposition to HANF

         22  before the House Subcommittee for Housing and

         23  Community Opportunity.

         24                 New York City administers the

         25  nation's most extensive Section 8 program.  We are
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          2  the third largest after the entire states of

          3  California and Texas.  As of May 31st, 2003, there

          4  were approximately 105,000 locally administered

          5  Section 8 apartments in New York City.  NYCHA

          6  currently has under contract 85,928 vouchers serving

          7  214,000 residents with 27,700 participating

          8  landlords.  HPD oversees 19,000 vouchers serving

          9  approximately 45,000 residents with 5,300 landlords.

         10                 The outcome of the process in

         11  Washington with respect to HANF will have a

         12  significant impact not only on the city's 105,000

         13  Section 8 voucher holders but also on the city's

         14  overall housing market.

         15                 New York City's Section 8 program is

         16  among the most successful in the country.  NYCHA's

         17  voucher utilization rate is approaching 98% and the

         18  program is growing.  HPD is now at over 100%.  Local

         19  control is the key reason for New York City's

         20  success with the Section 8 program.

         21                 Housing conditions vary widely from

         22  city to city.  Localities best understand their

         23  housing needs.  No state agency can know a local

         24  market as a city or locality can.

         25                 An example is the uniqueness of New
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          2  York City's housing market.  The overall vacancy

          3  rate is under 3% for all rental units and even lower

          4  for affordable housing units.  Given the tight

          5  housing market within the context of local control,

          6  NYCHA's able to work closely with HPD to ensure that

          7  the Section 8 program is targeted to address some of

          8  the city's priorities.

          9                 For example, NYCHA Section 8

         10  admission preferences reflect the city's homeless

         11  and domestic violence needs.  HPD's Section 8

         12  program targets homeless families and also

         13  complements HPD's housing development activity.

         14                 NYCHA's also working in collaboration

         15  with HPD and the Housing Development Corporation to

         16  carry out the Mayor's plan to produce 65,000

         17  additional units of affordable housing over the next

         18  four years.  The Section 8 program is an integral

         19  part of this plan, providing funding opportunities

         20  and operating subsidy for new and preserved

         21  affordable housing.

         22                 As a local entity NYCHA has been able

         23  to set far market rent levels by neighborhood,

         24  acknowledging the varying market conditions across

         25  the city's many communities.  We have also been able
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          2  to tailor the Section 8 program to meet the

          3  particular needs of city landlords and encourage

          4  their participation in the Section 8 program.  For

          5  example, NYCHA has streamlined rent payment

          6  processing to landlords.  We've shortened the

          7  approval process for Section 8 rentals and

          8  transfers.  We've automated inspections of

          9  apartments using hand- held computers, thereby

         10  saving time. We've automated the rent collection

         11  system, minimizing errors and we continue to pay

         12  holding fees to landlords to compensate them for

         13  apartment processing time.

         14                 In contrast, the pending HANF

         15  legislation contemplates state administration of the

         16  Section 8 program, jeopardizing our ability to

         17  tailor the Section 8 program to meet the city's

         18  unique needs.  HANF would add an unnecessary and

         19  costly third administrative layer at the state

         20  level. This would complicate the process and make it

         21  less direct.

         22                 Also, by establishing states as

         23  intermediaries, additional administrative costs will

         24  be incurred, which may not be fully funded.  With

         25  the budget challenges faced by the city at the city
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          2  and state levels is is doubtful that the states will

          3  be able to contribute additional resources that will

          4  be necessary to administer the program effectively.

          5  Any shortfall in funding could be passed along to a

          6  family or generally limit available assistance in

          7  the number of households that could be served.

          8                 Finally, the HANF proposal could

          9  result in serious reductions in funding levels.

         10  Funding for the current Section 8 program is based

         11  on actual costs of affordable housing, whereas block

         12  grant programs have historically been funded at a

         13  lower rate.

         14                 For these reasons and more, the city

         15  opposes HANF.  We would like to thank Council Member

         16  Lopez and the co- sponsors for introducing

         17  Resolution 907- A.  We appreciate your efforts to

         18  maintain the Section 8 program in its current

         19  successful structure as a locally administered

         20  program.  I thank the City Council for all of their

         21  support and I'll be happy to answer any questions

         22  that you may have.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         24  I'd just like to acknowledge Sara Gonzalez,

         25  Councilwoman, is here, and Councilman Tony Avella.
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          2                 Councilwoman Margerita Lopez, since

          3  it's your reso.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  I just want to

          5  indicate for the purpose of the public and for the

          6  purpose of the administration, that I am extremely

          7  pleased with the posture that the administration has

          8  taken in regard to this issue, particularly the

          9  aggressive position that has been taken by the

         10  chairman of the Housing Authority in making clear to

         11  everyone out there that this will be really

         12  detrimental in ways that I cannot even describe to

         13  the City of New York.  I also want to indicate that

         14  the position that the Commissioner of HPD has taken

         15  on this issue is also to be applauded and it's clear

         16  that both of you are taking care of the needs of

         17  affordable housing in the city, defending this

         18  particular program.

         19                 Saying that, I also want to indicate

         20  that the speaker of this body has joined me without

         21  no question on this issue.  The speaker of this

         22  body, Gifford Miller, understand that if Section 8

         23  is taken and given into the hands of the Governor,

         24  what that means is the same story that we have been

         25  seeing in regard of education, in regard of health,
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          2  in regard of transportation.  This Council, under

          3  the leadership of Speaker Miller, has made very

          4  clear that we are shortchanged, constantly and

          5  continuously when we talk about the fair share of

          6  dollars that's supposed to come from Albany to us.

          7                 If the Section 8 money is given in a

          8  block grant to the Governor, you better believe

          9  we're going to see

         10  the same story.  But in this case, it's worse.  And

         11  it's worse because the Section 8 money in the

         12  current form that it is, that is administered very,

         13  very well, provides for us the opportunity of

         14  something, for example, of savings affordable

         15  housing for people who are in Mitchell- Lama housing

         16  when the Mitchell- Lama housing is buy out of the

         17  Mitchell- Lama Program.  And vouchers are assigned

         18  to some of the residents who do qualify for this

         19  particular program. If this program is taken away

         20  from us we will not be able to modify and to be

         21  flexible in the way that we utilize these dollars

         22  and in the way that we put it in place, number one,

         23  to save affordable housing but, number two, and not

         24  less important, to stimulate the economy in our

         25  areas.  Because communities that are devastated are
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          2  not communities that have a good economy.  Section 8

          3  has been a program that has stabilized communities,

          4  not only in terms of affordable housing, but in

          5  terms of economic instability.

          6                 I don't have no particular questions,

          7  Mr. Chairman, I only have to say to you one more

          8  time, I have great admiration for the way that you

          9  are conducting business in Housing Authority and I

         10  congratulate you for the clear way in which you have

         11  articulated this issue in your presentation.  I

         12  honestly do not comprehend why the President of the

         13  United States is proposing such idea.  And this will

         14  be really horrible for all of us. Thank you,

         15  Chairman.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you,

         17  Councilwoman.  We've also been joined by

         18  Councilwoman Tracy Boyland.

         19                 MR. HERNANDEZ:  If I could, I'd like

         20  to make one quick comment.  I did inform City Hall

         21  yesterday about the City Council's resolution, the

         22  fact that you felt, the City Council as a body felt

         23  very strongly that the Speaker was supportive in

         24  opposition of the block granting of Section 8.  The

         25  Mayor has also provided a great deal of leadership
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          2  on this issue.  It's part of his legislative agenda

          3  and I think that this is really an opportunity where

          4  we'll all have coalesce, the executive branch and

          5  the City Council, the legislative branch and being

          6  able to do what's right for the City of New York and

          7  the residents that require housing, affordable

          8  housing in New York City.

          9                 I really want to commend you for your

         10  leadership, Councilwoman, because I know that you

         11  have always been a strong supporter of housing,

         12  affordable housing, for New Yorkers.  Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         14  Do we have any questions?  Councilwoman Brewer.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Thank you,

         16  Mr. Chairman.  I know how well organized your

         17  Section 8 program is but you did mention that the

         18  98% is what your voucher utilization is and I wanted

         19  to know, I assume that we don't send any funds or

         20  vouchers back to Washington.  And then, of course,

         21  in terms of HPD for you, Harold, HPD is now over

         22  100% utilization.  Does that include the sticky

         23  vouchers? Those are my two questions.  They're all

         24  on the west side, the sticky vouchers.

         25                 MR. HERNANDEZ:  I'd like to start and
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          2  then let Doug and Harold comment.  Although I oppose

          3  this proposal, I do think that the rationale from

          4  HUD had to do, one, with the concern of

          5  underutilizations of vouchers nationwide which has

          6  not really been the case here in New York, and also

          7  an attempt to do regulatory reform which, when I

          8  testified at Congress, I indicated that they can do

          9  regulatory reform without having the block grant.

         10  My understanding is that there's been nationwide

         11  upsurge in the utilization of vouchers.  We have, I

         12  think, one of the best programs in the country in

         13  New York City and that's why we were concerned about

         14  this block grant proposal.

         15                 Let me have Doug deal with the

         16  specifics about our utilization rates and then

         17  Harold will comment for HPD.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         19                 MR. APPLE:  Yes, Councilman.  The

         20  federal statute around Section 8 --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Just repeat

         22  your name for the record.

         23                 MR. APPLE:  I'm sorry.  Douglas

         24  Apple.  I'm the general manager at the Housing

         25  Authority.
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          2                 That you maintain a 97% utilization

          3  rate to be able to participate in future years of

          4  allocation.  So that's the key threshold.  As long

          5  as you're at that threshold you can use your

          6  vouchers over the course of the time.  So our 98%

          7  utilization rate is frankly just reflective of

          8  normal turnover in the program.  People will turn in

          9  their vouchers or, you know, will go to other places

         10  so, therefore, we then put them back into

         11  circulation, so there's always a little bit of a

         12  natural -- no, we do not lose vouchers.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay.

         14                 MR. SCHULTZ:  Harold Schultz, Special

         15  Counsel, Department of Housing, Preservation and

         16  Development.

         17                 No, we do not lose vouchers either.

         18  In fact, we're now in excess of a hundred percent

         19  utilization of our vouchers.

         20                 With regards to the question that you

         21  raised about sticky vouchers, as you know, sticky

         22  vouchers are special allocations on particular

         23  buildings so by their nature they're always a

         24  hundred percent used.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay.  Thank
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          2  you very much.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Madam Chair,

          4  can I expand this question for one minute?  Can you

          5  clarify for me if we are, if we are at capacity or

          6  we have more demand at the capacity that we have?

          7                 MR. SCHULTZ:  We always have a demand

          8  for housing.  We have grown, I think Section 8

          9  program by about 5,000 vouchers and actually have

         10  seen it as a real good vehicle, having

         11  public/private partnerships to be able to provide

         12  affordable housing.  Our current wait list combined

         13  is about 146,000 -- Section 8 wait list, 146,000

         14  people.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  On the waiting

         16  list currently.

         17                 MR. SCHULTZ:  On the waiting list.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  That's just

         19  for you or that includes HPD?

         20                 MR. SCHULTZ:  No, HPD's program has a

         21  different administrative plan.  As you know, what we

         22  use our Section 8 program and vouchers for primarily

         23  is to assist in our redevelopment activities.

         24  Section 8 is the way that we ensure when an occupied

         25  building is rehabilitated that no one is displaced,
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          2  that all eligible tenants will get Section 8

          3  vouchers so they can pay the new rents that are

          4  needed to support the building.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

          7  Any more questions?  No?  We thank you all for

          8  coming.

          9                 MR. APPLE:  Thank you.

         10                 MR. HERNANDEZ:  Again, I want to

         11  thank the City Council for your support in this

         12  effort.  It's a very important effort.  Thank you.

         13                 MR. SCHULTZ:  And on behalf of HPD I

         14  also thank the committee for its support.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay.  We

         16  have some folks -- okay, wait a minute.  We have

         17  some folks to testify on Reso. No. 907- A.  I'll

         18  call you up three at a time and there will be a two-

         19  minute clock since we still have a lot to do and

         20  there is a Council meeting to follow this hearing

         21  again, which is why we're set up, you know, with the

         22  Council chairs and which is why you're kind of

         23  inconvenienced by sitting around the edge.

         24                 David Muchnick, Marie Christopher,

         25  Victor Bach.  David, would you like to start?
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          2                 MR. MUCHNICK:  Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay.  Just

          4  introduce yourself.

          5                 MR. MUCHNICK:  Madam Chair, my name

          6  is David Muchnick and I'm here today representing

          7  the New York Housing Conference.  We're here to

          8  testify in support of Reso. 907- A.  I want to thank

          9  and commend the Council for introducing it.

         10                 The New York Housing Conference

         11  represents the major not- for- profit and for-

         12  profit developers, owners, managers and investors in

         13  affordable housing in New York City.  We are

         14  strongly opposed to the administration's proposal to

         15  convert Section 8 to block grants on the one hand

         16  and also to the redesignation of Section 8 to

         17  Housing Assistance for Needy Families for all of the

         18  reasons that the Chairman of the Housing Authority

         19  stated.  So we won't take any more time than that.

         20  But again, to commend the Council and you have

         21  copies of our written statement.  Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         23  Marie Christopher?

         24                 MS. CHRISTOPHER:  My name is Marie

         25  Christopher.  I'm the President of the Tenant
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          2  Association at 210 Stanton Street.  That is the

          3  project based Section 8 located on the lower east

          4  side.  It has approximately 171 units.  I'm here

          5  today to support Resolution 907- A and this is why.

          6                 On February 22nd a letter came in the

          7  mail for my tenants notifying us as of 2004, January

          8  7th, we will no longer be eligible, the contract

          9  will expire and our eligibility for Section 8 will

         10  be gone.  In my building the Section 8 is attached

         11  to the units, not the tenants.  So when the contract

         12  expires, the entire building will no longer be

         13  affordable.  It will automatically go into what is

         14  known as decontrol and the landlord can ask for

         15  whatever he wants to and he can now evict you for no

         16  reason, just because he doesn't want you there.    We

         17  have over 500 people living in my building.  We are

         18  the working force.  We cannot afford to pay 1,750 or

         19  $3,000 for a two bedroom or more. Vouchers were our

         20  safety net.

         21                 If the landlord of our building

         22  decided to completely pull the building out of the

         23  program, which is his right, and there's no law or

         24  no government agency that can stop him, the

         25  vouchers, then we had a chance to apply for vouchers
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          2  in which to help us.  If the vouchers are taken away

          3  and given to the state, like everything else that's

          4  given to the state, New York City will be

          5  shortchanged and my building will not be eligible --

          6  there probably will not be any vouchers.  The

          7  program will change and the 600 or 500 people will

          8  probably be homeless.

          9                 I want to thank the City Council for

         10  proposing this resolution.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         12  Mr. Bach.  Push the button.  If it's off, you're on.

         13                 MR. BACH:  Okay.  Community Service

         14  Society enthusiastically supports the resolution.

         15  Our major reasons are outlined in the written

         16  testimony and in a longer paper that we prepared for

         17  a forum that we're holding at CSS tomorrow.

         18                 Very briefly, the block grant funds

         19  tend to remain fixed over time so they're blind to

         20  rising housing costs, they're blind to inflation and

         21  to growing needs of the kind Marie just referred to.

         22    We're concerned about state control of these funds

         23  and we think the voucher system will come to more

         24  closely represent the shelter allowance system over

         25  time which in New York City we know is inadequate.

                                                            25

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2                 Thirdly, it takes programs that are

          3  urban housing programs, takes them out of the cities

          4  and gives them to the state capital.  We think urban

          5  housing programs ought to stay where they are.

          6                 Council Member Lopez did ask why the

          7  administration is doing this, and I just have to

          8  very strongly state that this is a strategy they're

          9  doing across nearly every area of social policy,

         10  including Medicaid, Welfare, Head Start.  It isn't

         11  just housing vouchers.  The idea is to limit and cut

         12  federal commitments to social policy at the same

         13  time that other things are being done in Washington.

         14                 For that reason, we're having a forum

         15  tomorrow.  It's called "Ending the Safety Net As We

         16  Know It."  We hope you all will come.  It tries to

         17  connect the dots across the various policy areas and

         18  look at what the Bush administration is doing in all

         19  of our major concerns. Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you,

         21  Mr. Bach. Thank all of you.

         22                 Judith Goldener, Maizie Torres, Mary

         23  Spink.

         24                 Identify yourself, please, and start.

         25                 MS. GOLDENER:  Yes.  I'm Judith
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          2  Goldener, a staff attorney with the Civil Appeals

          3  and Law Reform Unit of the Legal Aid Society.  We

          4  are here to support the resolution against the block

          5  granting of the Section 8 program.  I wanted to

          6  thank Council Member Lopez for her leadership on

          7  this issue and thank the rest of the Council and

          8  hope that they will support this resolution.

          9                 The Legal Aid Society is counsel on

         10  numerous class actions concerning the rights of

         11  Section 8 tenants including Williams vs. New York

         12  City Housing Authority and McNeill vs. New York City

         13  Housing Authority.  We feel that we speak with

         14  special resonance on the Section 8 program.

         15                 We oppose the block granting of the

         16  Section 8 program essentially for five reasons.  It

         17  will result in Section 8 voucher holders paying a

         18  greater share of housing costs.  It's likely that

         19  the standards that govern the Section 8 program,

         20  including other rent levels, the assistance and the

         21  housing quality standards, will be dramatically

         22  reduced if there's block granting.

         23                 It's likely that if it is sent to the

         24  state that the state will use federal funds to

         25  substitute for the state share of the shelter
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          2  allowance program and it's very likely that New York

          3  State will shift vouchers from New York City where

          4  the housing needs are greatest to upstate areas

          5  where the housing need is less grave.

          6                 In addition, the block grant will be

          7  blind to housing costs and the growing need for

          8  voucher assistance.

          9                 You know, we're already seeing a

         10  dramatic shrinking of the Section 8 pool and a block

         11  grant will only exacerbate that trend.

         12                 In addition, given how New York City

         13  has suffered through the years with Albany not

         14  giving the city its fair share, block granting will

         15  likely increase that chance even more.

         16                 So these reasons, among more that are

         17  detailed in our testimony, we oppose the block

         18  granting of the Section 8 program.

         19                 I'm happy to answer any questions

         20  that anyone might have.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         22                 Want to identify yourself and speak?

         23                 MS. TORRES:  Hi.  My name is Maizie

         24  Torres and I'm a staff member at Good Old Lower East

         25  Side, a community based organization and also a
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          2  tenant -- President of the Tenant Association of

          3  Lower East Side Phase I and II, project based

          4  Section 8 on the lower east side.

          5                 We have approximately 350 tenants in

          6  our development.  We are in favor of the resolution

          7  907- A and I'm going to give you a brief example

          8  why.

          9                 As one of the 200 tenants in the

         10  lower East Side I development I found a letter

         11  pushed under my door saying that the building had a

         12  Section 8 based contract which was expiring and not

         13  to be renewed.  Tenants were shocked.  I felt

         14  devastated.  None of us knew about the HUD contract.

         15    In the 20 years that I have lived in the

         16  development I never knew that there was a time limit

         17  to my housing.  I did not understand it.  I was

         18  worried that my family would become homeless.  We

         19  were also scared.  Several of my neighbors had to

         20  take their children to therapy.

         21                 I met with a tenant organizer and got

         22  involved to protect my home.  The more information I

         23  got, the more scared I was.  I have lived my whole

         24  life in the lower east side and now my family could

         25  not afford the market rent.  It made me fight, want

                                                            29

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  to fight for my family, my neighbors and for other

          3  people living in project based Section 8.

          4                 Looking back I'm really glad I got

          5  involved. I did not just save my housing, the skills

          6  I learned in organizing helped me get a job.  It

          7  gave me an opportunity not just for myself but for

          8  my four children.

          9            Now, almost five years later, we are

         10  facing the same challenge as the five year contract

         11  we renegotiated is now up.  This is a difficult

         12  situation already.  The Bush administration's plan

         13  to give states control of federal vouchers that help

         14  nearly 2 million families pay the rent would be a

         15  major change for one of the government's largest

         16  housing programs.

         17                 At this point we are concerned that

         18  the proposed shift will establish different

         19  standards for who could qualify for the subsidies.

         20  We also say the change would further burden states.

         21  It is critical that the greatest number of Section 8

         22  vouchers be used for the lowest income tenants.

         23                 We are concerned that the states will

         24  not be made to comply with this federal restriction.

         25    We're also concerned that the cities such as New
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          2  York will receive less money than they currently do

          3  because the state will change the distribution of

          4  the funding.

          5                 It is critical that we say no to

          6  those programs because developments like LES I and

          7  II and other lower east side buildings are already

          8  in jeopardy without the added burden of competing

          9  for lessening dollars.  Thank you very much.

         10                 MS. SPINK:  Hello.  My name -- I'm

         11  testifying today in my capacity as the Executive

         12  Director of the Lower East Side People's Mutual

         13  Housing Association.  My name is Mary Spink and my

         14  organization is in complete and total support of

         15  Resolution 907- A.

         16                 My organization administers many

         17  Section 8 units which, if funding were cut, would

         18  mean that we would be faced with evicting many of

         19  our residents which is not how we would like to

         20  spend our organization's time or resources.  After

         21  all, we exist to develop and preserve low income

         22  housing in our community.

         23                 I would just like to add, in this

         24  past year, roughly three months ago, we got a

         25  telephone call from HPD. We administer both HPD and
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          2  NYCHA Section 8.  We're not project based, it's

          3  tenant vouchers.  The call was to different

          4  community groups that there were some extra existing

          5  vouchers.  We were able to provide 32 households

          6  with vouchers.  That sounds like a small amount, but

          7  these 32 households were households that, on a

          8  regular basis, even though were low income housing,

          9  had a problem paying their rent and now they will

         10  not have that problem.  I would venture to say that

         11  if this went into stand hands this is not the kind

         12  of arrangement or the kind of working agreement that

         13  I would have with a state agency.

         14                 To switch Section 8 from federal

         15  control to state administered block grants would be

         16  disastrous and would, as history shows, most

         17  assuredly lower the amount of funds available to New

         18  York City's Section 8 program.

         19                 I would like to thank our

         20  Councilwoman Margerita Lopez for introducing

         21  Resolution 907- A and would hope that the entire

         22  Council would endorse it wholeheartedly.  Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you

         24  very much. Do we have any questions?

         25                 We've also been joined by Council
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          2  Member Diana Reyna, Council Member Lew Fidler,

          3  Council Member Kendall Stewart.  Thank all of you.

          4                 That finishes the testimony on

          5  proposed Reso. No. 907- A.  We'll move on to No.

          6  911- A.  We have representatives from Housing

          7  Preservation and Development.

          8                 Hi.  Terzah Nasser, counsel for the

          9  Council on Housing and Buildings.  I just wanted to

         10  briefly go through the amendments to Reso. No. 911.

         11  It is now proposed Resolution No. 911- A.

         12                 Just very quickly.  The first whereas

         13  clause was amended to delete the reference to "ILGWU

         14  Houses, Inc." As this is a name that is no longer

         15  commonly used by the Mutual Redevelopment Houses,

         16  also known as Penn South.

         17                 The amended clause now reads,

         18   "Whereas, Mutual Redevelopment Houses, Inc., also

         19  known as Penn South or housing company, is a

         20  redevelopment company organized under Article V of

         21  the Private Housing Finance Law," and that pertains

         22  to the first whereas clause.

         23                 Also the seventh whereas clause of

         24  the original Reso. No. 911 was amended to correct

         25  the year identified as 1993 in the original
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          2  resolution and change it to 1991.  It's self-

          3  explanatory with in the reso., which is available

          4  for the public.  Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

          6  We've also been joined by Council Member Christine

          7  Quinn and Council Member Melinda Katz.  I should

          8  notice you in red. Is that why you wear red?

          9                 You can start.

         10                 MS. WALPERT:  Good afternoon,

         11  Chairperson Provenzano and members of the Housing

         12  and Buildings Committee.  My name is Julie Walpert

         13  and I'm the Assistant Commissioner for Housing

         14  Supervision at the Department of Housing

         15  Preservation and Development.  I'm joined by Carol

         16  Clark, Assistant Commissioner for Local Legislative

         17  Affairs. Commissioner Jerilyn Perrine has asked us

         18  to testify on her behalf today concerning the

         19  request by Mutual Redevelopment Houses' Board of

         20  Directors for a capital assessment increase and for

         21  a change in the housing company's amendatory

         22  agreement regarding the definition of family for

         23  purposes of succession rights.

         24                 Mutual Redevelopment Houses,

         25  popularly known as Penn South Houses, is a
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          2  redevelopment company organized under Article V of

          3  the Private Finance Housing Law.  It's important to

          4  note that Article V housing companies diverse

          5  significantly from Mitchell- Lama housing companies

          6  with respect to the level of ongoing city

          7  supervisory responsibility.  Pursuant to Article V

          8  and the redevelopment company contract with the

          9  city, HPD supervises admission and occupancy

         10  requirements at Article V developments and the

         11  Council has jurisdiction over carrying charge

         12  increases including capital assessments.

         13                 Penn South is located in Chelsea and

         14  consists of 15 buildings with 2,820 dwelling unit.

         15  Housing companies authorized by Article V are

         16  regulated by contract with the municipality.  The

         17  Board of Estimate previously was responsible for

         18  approving such contracts and any amendments. The

         19  City Council is now the body responsible for

         20  approval of contract amendment requests made by this

         21  housing company. Penn South last came before the

         22  Council in 1998 for a carrying charge increase.

         23  Penn South is now appearing before the Council

         24  seeking approval for both the imposition of a

         25  capital assessment to fund the cost of replacing
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          2  Penn South's underground electrical distribution

          3  system and other capital improvements projects and

          4  to change the definition of family member in its

          5  contract with the city.  The housing company seeks a

          6  July 1st effective date for this increase request.

          7                 I understand that Penn South's Board

          8  of Directors will speak in more detail about the

          9  underground electrical project and will also explain

         10  the additional cost of projects that are needed at

         11  the development.  However, HPD has sent its

         12  engineers to review the proposed specifications and

         13  has concurred with Penn South's engineers and their

         14  recommendations.  The city will provide SCRIE,

         15  Senior Citizen Rent Increase Exemption, to eligible

         16  seniors at the development and to assist them in

         17  paying the capital assessment.  Additionally, the

         18  housing company has committee to assisting low

         19  income shareholders not eligible for SCRIE.

         20                 Penn South is also seeking Council

         21  approval to expand the definition of family member

         22  for purposes of succession rights.  The proposed

         23  changes more closely conform to the definition that

         24  applies to the Mitchell- Lama rules for housing

         25  companies that were developed pursuant to Article II
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          2  of the Private Housing Finance Law.

          3                 In order to maintain the sound

          4  housing and financial status of the development, HPD

          5  recommends that the Council approve the request of

          6  Mutual Redevelopment's Board of Directors for a

          7  capital assessment effective July 1st to fund the

          8  electrical underground wiring project.  We also

          9  recommend that the Council approve the broadened

         10  definition of family for purposes of succession

         11  rights.

         12                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         13  speak to you on behalf of HPD today.  I'm happy to

         14  respond to any questions.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         16  Carol, do you have testimony or -- okay.  We've also

         17  been joined by Council Member Leroy Comrie.  I think

         18  that accounts for everybody.  Do we have any

         19  questions?  Councilwoman Quinn?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Can you

         21  elaborate on the succession rights issue and how

         22  Penn South, what they're seeking?

         23                 MS. WALPERT:  The current contract

         24  has a very limited succession policy where only

         25  parents, children and spouses or domestic partners
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          2  have rights to an apartment after the initial

          3  occupant leaves.  It's suggested to Penn South that

          4  they expand it to more closely mirror the Mitchell-

          5  Lama rules of succession which expands it to

          6  grandchildren, sister, brother, niece, nephew, aunt

          7  and uncle, stepparents and in- laws.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Can you just

          9  restate, Commissioner, the pre- existing categories?

         10                 MS. WALPERT:  It was just grand -- it

         11  was just parents, children and spouses or domestic

         12  partners.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Spouses or

         14  domestic partners.

         15                 MS. WALPERT:  Yes.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  And regarding

         17  the financial needs of this application, the

         18  department is concurs and is supportive of the fact

         19  that the development needs this request and that

         20  it's within, that it's appropriate, that it's

         21  nothing in excess or more than is actually needed?

         22                 MS. WALPERT:  Yes, we do.  We

         23  actually sent out our engineers who spent the

         24  afternoon at Penn South going through what was

         25  needed.
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          2                 And just to go back to the succession

          3  rights, we had gotten a number of phone calls from

          4  shareholders who were concerned and that's why we

          5  suggested to Penn South that they expand because of

          6  the number of phone calls we've gotten over the

          7  years.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Thank you.

          9  Council Member Reyna.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Thank you,

         11  Madam Chair.  I just wanted to find out, Julie, if

         12  there's any assessment as to how many seniors, a

         13  percentage, of how many seniors occupy the building

         14  right now.

         15                 MS. WALPERT:  I actually don't have

         16  those numbers with me but I can get back to you.

         17  Our SCRIE will have them.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  My greatest

         19  concern is that the majority of the seniors might

         20  not qualify for SCRIE, if we're depending on issuing

         21  them benefits such as SCRIE because of the income

         22  eligibility factor.  Many seniors receive perhaps

         23  both Social Security as well as a pension and

         24  because of the math they slightly go above the

         25  maximum.
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          2                 MS. WALPERT:  I'd actually like to

          3  defer that to when the Board of Directors gives

          4  their presentation because they've suggested that

          5  they will expand beyond what the city gives for

          6  SCRIE, that they will provide for seniors -- again,

          7  I don't know what the exact income requirements that

          8  they will -- that they're prepared to assess but

          9  they have some plans.  Because I think that they had

         10  the same concerns.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  We want to be

         12  able to protect the seniors, understanding that

         13  we're not just throwing a program that's not really

         14  going to protect them at all.

         15                 MS. WALPERT:  And they've actually

         16  addressed that, and I'd like them to speak to that.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         19  Do we have any other questions?  Okay.  We thank you

         20  very much.

         21                 We're going to conduct the rest of

         22  this hearing a little differently.  We have a

         23  Council meeting that's waiting to start, so what

         24  we've done so far is 907- A, we have -- what we

         25  usually do is we have the proposed legislation or
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          2  reso. And the administration always speaks either

          3  pro or con on it.  And then we're followed by public

          4  testimony, pro or con.  So we're finished with 907-

          5  A.  We had the administration speak and we had six

          6  people speak. We only had pro on that reso.

          7                 So what we're going to do now is we

          8  will have three speakers, Robert Silverman, Walter

          9  Mankoff, Brendan Kenny and after that we will ask

         10  those people who have signed in to speak in favor of

         11  it, if you signed a little sheet you can walk up to

         12  the front, state your name and say you're in favor

         13  of it.  We will ask that those people who have

         14  signed up in opposition to it to get a little caucus

         15  together, select three folks so that you will have

         16  equal time.  Those three people will speak.  The

         17  rest of you, again, will come up, say your name into

         18  the microphone and state that you're in opposition

         19  to it.  That's the fairest way I can do it in

         20  consideration of the time constraint we have on us

         21  today.  So do your little caucus someplace, those

         22  that are in opposition, select three people that

         23  will speak. I thank you for your understanding

         24  today.

         25                 Gentlemen, whoever wishes to start,
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          2  just state your name.

          3                 MR. SILVERSTEIN:  I will.  Thank you.

          4  Correction.  My name is Robert Silverstein, not

          5  Silverman.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  And once

          7  again, you're on a two minute clock.

          8                 MR. SILVERSTEIN:  Good afternoon,

          9  Madam Chair and other members of the committee.  I'm

         10  Robert L. Silverstein, the President of Mutual

         11  Redevelopment Houses, popularly known as Penn South.

         12  I'm accompanied by our Treasurer, Walter Mankoff, on

         13  one side of me and Brendan Kenny, our general

         14  manager.  I am also accompanied by a great many

         15  senior citizens on limited income that support what

         16  we want and I would appreciate if they raise their

         17  hands so we know who they are.  Just raise your

         18  hands so we know who you are.

         19                 Penn South is a limited equity

         20  housing cooperative organized under New York's

         21  redevelopment companies laws and opened it in 1962.

         22  Our 15 buildings with 2,820 apartments occupy six

         23  square blocks in Chelsea.  We are one of the last

         24  examples in this city of affordable housing for low

         25  and moderate families.  Both in 1987 and again in
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          2  2001 our co- operators overwhelmingly reaffirmed

          3  their desire that we remained a limited equity

          4  development. You can see how affordable we are when

          5  I tell you that our present carrying charges are

          6  $144 a room and our apartment sells for $4,079 a

          7  room.  A typical large four room apartment, one

          8  bedroom, with a terrace and a beautiful view, has a

          9  monthly carrying charge of $576 and you can buy the

         10  apartment for $16,316 and that's in Chelsea.  You

         11  want it? Melinda wants in.  Okay.  I'll have to open

         12  the list.

         13                 Our contract with the city requires

         14  that the City Council approve our capital

         15  assessments and contract changes.  That is why we're

         16  here today.  The commitee has before it our formal

         17  submission prepared by our counsel, Ezra Goodman,

         18  who is sitting in the audience right next to us, and

         19  I'd like to highlight the key points.

         20                 A confluence of factors made it

         21  necessary for Penn South to raise substantial funds

         22  at this time.  It deals mainly with rising fuel

         23  costs, rising insurance and an aging infrastructure.

         24    We're 41 years old.  Recently a new major

         25  construction project appeared on the scene and
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          2  forced us to turn to additional borrowing and

          3  assessment.  Our buildings receive electricity from

          4  a central power plant, via a huge underground

          5  network.  Since 1986 we are co-generating our own

          6  power.

          7                 Recently our consultant engineer, Ron

          8  Mangione, who is also in the audience, advised us

          9  that our 40 year old network can no longer be

         10  repaired but must be entirely replaced.  It's our

         11  concern that a cable failure would deprive our

         12  buildings' residences without electricity.

         13  The cost of the replacement is $5 million.  Work

         14  will start as soon as financing is in place.

         15                 Aside from the underground project,

         16  several million dollars of other capital

         17  improvements including masonry, roofing, elevators

         18  and other things are coming up. It's planned to

         19  finance this work with an $8 million loan and a

         20  capital assessment of $960 a room.  In the last two

         21  weeks, subsequent to our submission to the Council,

         22  we received very favorable news.  A sudden drop in

         23  interest rates and increasing cash in the hands of

         24  lenders has made it possible for us to completely

         25  refinance our debt, borrow the additional funds and
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          2  at the same time reduce our debt service by $2

          3  million a year.

          4                 Going forward with the assessment as

          5  originally planned --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Could I ask

          7  you

          8  to --

          9                 MR. SILVERSTEIN:  Wind up.

         10                 MALE SPEAKER:  We're not speaking.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  'Cause I'm

         12  cutting short.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Go.  Finish.

         14    Thank you.

         15                 MR. SILVERSTEIN:  -- Will allow us to

         16  build a genuine capital reserve fund and undertake

         17  sooner than planned the elevator operating and other

         18  essential work that was put off into the future

         19  because we did not want to unduly tax our co-

         20  operators.  One of the questions Diana Reyna asked

         21  was how many seniors we have.  We have two thirds of

         22  our cooperative are over 60 years old.  That's what

         23  we have.

         24                 We fully recognize that the planned

         25  assessment is sizeable and can assure the Council
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          2  that we have taken steps to ensure that it will not

          3  be a hardship on the least fortunate of our co-

          4  operators.  Those seniors who qualify for SCRIE will

          5  have their assessment covered.  Our staff has been

          6  at the present time working with those people who

          7  are not eligible for SCRIE and fall in that little

          8  pocket that you're talking about and have worked out

          9  ways of them paying this assessment so that it will

         10  not be a burden to them.  I will tell you, our

         11  office has been filled with these requests and we're

         12  happy to help them.

         13                 Second, arrangements will be made

         14  with any low income co- operator who has difficulty

         15  paying.  That's what I just mentioned about those

         16  who don't have -- who are on Section 8, for example,

         17  that we will work with them, too.

         18                 We have also put into place a program

         19  to assist and subsidize households where single

         20  people or two people living in large three bedroom,

         21  two bathroom apartments and two bedroom apartments,

         22  to assist them by helping them move down to a

         23  smaller apartment if they have difficulty affording

         24  this.

         25                 Even with this additional cost, Penn
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          2  South's eminently affordable.  A typical one bedroom

          3  apartment will sell for only $20,156 and will call

          4  for an out- of- pocket cost for carrying charges and

          5  equity of $656 a month and that's only during the

          6  four year period.  When that's over, hopefully we

          7  will be finished.

          8                 The Penn South Board of Directors has

          9  given this matter careful consideration.  I and the

         10  14 other members believe that it has adopted a sound

         11  fiscal program that will meet our needs for years to

         12  come.

         13                 The second matter on our application

         14  is much simpler.  Our present contract with the city

         15  limits occupancy and succession rights to a very

         16  limited range of family members related to the

         17  shareholder, spouse, children, parents, domestic

         18  partners and other non- traditional family members.

         19  Some time ago HPD suggested that we consider

         20  expanding the list to make it similar to the broader

         21  list of relatives at the Mitchell- Lama housing.

         22  After due consideration, our Board agreed to this

         23  modification of our contract.

         24                 I would like to thank this committee

         25   -- the academy -- for this opportunity to appear --
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          2  I've been watching the Tonys and the Oscars too long

          3   -- to appear before you and urge, and so do all my

          4  constituents in the back, that our application be

          5  approved.  We will be glad to answer any questions

          6  the committee may have.  Thank you very much.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  I just have

          8  one.  Go ahead.  We've also been joined by Council

          9  Member Robert Jackson, who's back there somewhere

         10  and we are being joined by Council Member James

         11  Oddo.

         12                 I have one question.  My office got

         13  some letters from some folks that reside in the

         14  building and minor complaints and whatever.  So I

         15  can forward them to you and you will make sure

         16  they're taken care of.

         17                 MR. SILVERSTEIN:   Definitely.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         19  Do we have any -- absolutely.  Council Member Lopez.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  The second

         21  item that you mentioned will make possible for me to

         22  get a girlfriend in your building and to be able to

         23  live there?

         24                 MR. SILVERSTEIN:  That's the whole

         25  idea.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Oh, I have the

          3  girlfriend.

          4                 MR. SILVERSTEIN:  Okay.  Good.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  I know where

          6  she lives.

          7                 MR. SILVERSTEIN:  Okay, good.  Thank

          8  you.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Do we have

         11  any questions?  Council Member Quinn?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  I don't as

         13  much have a question, but just to say that you say

         14  in your presentation, which accurately described

         15  Penn South, as the wonderful place that it is

         16  created a political problem for me because I now

         17  think many of my colleagues are going to try to move

         18  into the district.

         19                 MR. SILVERSTEIN:  We already had one.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  I just wanted

         21  for the record to say that I'm supportive of the

         22  request that's being made by Penn South of the

         23  committee and the Council, that these repairs are

         24  desperately needed, that particularly with the way

         25  it's being financed and also with the SCRIE
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          2  workshops, et cetera, that they're going be doing,

          3  every attempt has been made to make sure that this

          4  increase which really is very, very necessary

          5  because of the infrastructure and electrical needs,

          6  is not impactful in a negative way on people on

          7  limited incomes.  The co- op's really doing

          8  everything it can to make sure no one is put out or

          9  anything of that nature because of this.  Since I'm

         10  not a member of the committee, I want to make sure

         11  that the committee knew that I am supportive of the

         12  request being made by the co- op.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you,

         14  Council Member Quinn.

         15                 Do we have any other questions?

         16  Okay.  Thank you very much.

         17                 MR. SILVERSTEIN:  Thank you very

         18  much.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  I want to

         20  thank the committee that chose the three persons

         21  that will speak.  You did an excellent job.  I only

         22  gave the instructions once and you followed them.

         23  We're going to have you in on our budget

         24  negotiations.  You're wonderful.  Vera Feingold,

         25  Helen Robbins and James Graniela.
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          2                 Thank you.  Whoever wants to may

          3  start first. Just identify yourself before you

          4  speak.  Turn your button on or turn it off.  When

          5  it's off, you're on.  Is it on now?

          6                 MS. FEINGOLD:  First, let me thank

          7  the people who paid their own car fare to come down

          8  here.  This is the second time that we have resorted

          9  to this kind of financing, taking it out of our own

         10  pockets.  This $20 a room for 48 months is twice as

         11  much as the last equity increase which was for

         12  windows.  There are some co- operators who are still

         13  paying the windows.  It is stated that there are

         14  more capital improvements coming up which will be

         15  financed in the same way.  There is no such thing as

         16  never needing another capital improvement.  This is

         17  a pattern that will continue, which means that

         18  affordable housing is no longer affordable. The

         19  people living in Penn South cannot maintain the

         20  buildings with this type of financing.  This

         21  assessment is beyond the means of many co- operators

         22  and a hardship for some.  Even more disturbing is

         23  that there's some tough talk that arrears will be

         24  treated as arrears in carrying charges. We have

         25  written to Miss Quinn and Miss Provenzano asking
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          2  that safeguards be written into the resolution for

          3  those who cannot pay or pay as requested.

          4                 We're the last redevelopment company

          5  still under HPD's supervision.  We have been granted

          6  60 years of real estate tax abatement, ten years

          7  more than Mitchell- Lama developments and we have

          8  more commercial property than any other co- op

          9  without the ability to collect the proper levels of

         10  rent for them, denying some of the full profits due

         11  to the corporation.

         12                 They have continued to borrow and to

         13  add to our mortgages while similar co- ops are

         14  paying off their debt.  Why is Penn South out of

         15  step with other co- ops? President Silverstein in

         16  his rebuttal to some of our suggested solutions to

         17  our fiscal problems states that Seward Park was on

         18  full real estate taxes before they reconstituted.

         19  How can they afford that which we cannot manage to

         20  do with all our tax breaks?   Seward Park has

         21  reserved funds which is something Penn South never

         22  had. They use the word "genuine" reserved fund.  I

         23  believe we've talked about reserve funds before, but

         24  it was never genuine.

         25                 HPD never saw an increase it didn't
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          2  like at most of these hearings or all the hearings.

          3  Has always denied supervisory authority over Penn

          4  South.  It's the first time they said we took a look

          5  at the contract and we really need it.

          6                 Why do we have a contract with an

          7  agency that offers no guidance and no protection?

          8  We were told we need $5 million, borrow 8 million

          9  and raise 10 1/2 million and added expenses that

         10  have no price tag and no timetables. Something

         11  stinks at Penn South and HPD is helping to cover it

         12  up.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Would you

         14  please sum up, so your colleagues can speak.

         15                 MS. FEINGOLD:  We have never seen the

         16  details of the first time we heard about the

         17  succession rights and therefore have only to comment

         18  is that from now on almost nobody will get into Penn

         19  South unless he makes himself somehow related to an

         20  existing co- operator.

         21                 So the taxpayers are supporting us,

         22  but they'll never have an opportunity to enter.

         23  Thank you very much.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         25                 MS. ROBBINS:  Helen Robbins.  I have
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          2  lived here since the inception of Penn South,

          3  approximately 41 years.  I'm reading my statement to

          4  expedite my presentation.

          5                 Our Board has advised the co-

          6  operators of their new financing plan only one week

          7  before this City Council meeting.  This changes

          8  everything.  The Board is now refinancing all our

          9  mortgages and adding 15 million to the total at a

         10  lower interest rate.  Using the Board's figures,

         11  this will save us $2 million a year.  If the City

         12  Council approves the Board's request of $960 per

         13  room, this will bring an additional 10 million over

         14  a period of four years. This 10 million plus the 14

         15  million added to our mortgage totals 24 million.

         16  Added to all of this is the $2 million interest

         17  saving per year.

         18                 This is too much, too fast and no

         19  need to assess the co- operators an additional $20

         20  per room per month for four years without a serious

         21  investigation.  A 3% or 4% maintenance increase is

         22  more than reasonable and sufficient at this time.

         23  If a landlord requested a 17% increase, which is

         24  what this $20 per room per month amounts to, it

         25  would be political suicide for any city official to
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          2  approve it.

          3                 Over the years it has become more

          4  apparent that these City Council procedures in City

          5  Hall are an object in futility.  Let this be on the

          6  record that Penn South, with its excessive spending

          7  and irresponsible management, received three tax

          8  abatements.  The Board based their claim on the fact

          9  that we have a two- thirds NORC residency, meaning

         10  naturally occurring retired community.

         11                 A questionable affidavit was

         12  submitted by the Board for our third tax abatement.

         13  How can the Board in all good conscience impose so

         14  large an increase, the laxity of supervision over

         15  Penn South by HPD and the City Council and whatever

         16  powers that be, we don't know how many, will one day

         17  to come to haunt all participating officials that

         18  were associated with our development.  Even the

         19  officials at Freddie Mac who weren't minding the

         20  store properly and diligently are now being called

         21  to task and as a result may jeopardize the entire

         22  mortgage industry.  Thank you for your time.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         24                 MR. GRANIELA:  My name is Jim

         25  Graniela.
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          2                 MS. ROBBINS:  No comments, please.

          3                 MR. GRANIELA:  Again the management

          4  of Penn South is digging into the pockets of the

          5  residents to raise money to cover expenses for

          6  replacement of electrical feeder cabling of our

          7  buildings.  This will be either the third or fourth

          8  time in my memory of 41 years that this cable has

          9  been replaced.  The last time when I pointed out to

         10  management that the feeder cable should be encased

         11  in concrete housing, I was told that I didn't know

         12  what I was talking about.  Well, here we are a few

         13  short years later and now the lobby and the SCRIE

         14  meetings, management and President Robert

         15  Silverstein are telling us that because of the lack

         16  of the encasements, we need to replace the entire

         17  run of feeder cable again.  Note that the London

         18  Terrace apartment complex in the same time period

         19  has not had to rewire as often as we.  Why is that?

         20                 In this time of fiscal hardship for

         21  both the city and State of New York, why is Penn

         22  South constantly asking the government to bail them

         23  out?  Why are we at Penn South to suffer the same

         24  fate as Co- Op City in the Bronx, who's debt exceeds

         25  430 million?  Why are HPD and the City Council
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          2  allowing -- no, aiding in the destruction of Penn

          3  South?

          4                 In the minutes sent to us from the

          5  Board of Directors on June 6, 2003, Walter Mankoff,

          6  the Treasurer states that, "The opportunity for

          7  refinancing our current debt would not only pay off

          8  our first mortgage but would also pay off all

          9  existing bank loans, providing an additional $8

         10  million that we intend to borrow for the underground

         11  and other capital projects, provide funds to pay

         12  about $5.2 million to release us from our first

         13  existing mortgage and about $150,000 in fees, taxes

         14  and other closing costs while reducing our annual

         15  debt service.  Quote. That's the end of the quote.

         16                 He also goes on to say that this new

         17  financing would, and I quote, "Combined the impact

         18  of equity

         19  payments and debt service saving permits and

         20  establishment of genuine reserve fund."  By my

         21  accounting, this is an admission that the annual

         22  reports to date that have been submitted by this

         23  Board and prepared by Anderson Accounting, showing a

         24  reserve fund positive balance, have been misleading

         25  and even criminal misrepresentations of our true
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          2  financial situation.

          3                 So why is this Council, even after --

          4  even considering 9/11 -- if Mr. Mankoff's statements

          5  are true, then the added revenue is unwarranted and

          6  would amount to a slush fund for the Board to

          7  continue its mismanagement.

          8                 And, for the record, this same Board

          9  and management has been on a three year spending

         10  spree involving millions of dollars on non-

         11  essential items such as overpriced playgrounds,

         12  overpriced fencing, overpriced hallway decorations

         13  and the like.

         14                 You only have to look at the

         15  composition of our current Board of Directors and

         16  management to note that most of its members are not

         17  reflective of the residents and that their income

         18  far outstrips the median income of residents here at

         19  Penn South.  So, it is not surprising that the

         20  insensitivity to our minority community is resented.

         21  The Board of Directors and management's

         22  paternalistic, Communist philosophy is out of step

         23  with our American heritage and the prevailing tide

         24  of the world to the detriment of the efforts of a

         25  real democratic process here at Penn South.
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          2                 The fact is that reconstitution is --

          3  if chosen in Penn South would no longer -- would

          4  make Penn South no longer have to look to the city

          5  and state government for constant bailouts and that

          6  the financial security of our co- op and the

          7  residents would improve dramatically.  After all,

          8  isn't that the American dream, not to just linger

          9  and have governments bail you out.

         10                 I believe a federal investigation is

         11  long overdo into the financial mismanagement of this

         12  Board of Directors and management.  Its use of

         13  intimidation, misinformation.  For example, we

         14  didn't know there was a succession clause until we

         15  got here this morning.  All right?  We should have

         16  known this in advance.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Would you

         18  please sum up.

         19                 MR. GRANIELA:  I am.  At this time

         20  and threats to cover its illegal activities.  The

         21  time for accountability is now.  Please stop aiding

         22  this Board of Directors and destroying our freedom

         23  and homes.  Our homes belong to us and not to HPD or

         24  any other government agency.

         25                 And an additional co- operator who's
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          2  a elderly person says that if she is forced to move

          3  down her apartment size, she will no longer be able

          4  to entertain her Israeli cousins and other cousins

          5  from other countries that visit her because now that

          6  she's single and has a larger apartment --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay.  Your

          8  time is up.  Thank you.

          9                 MR. GRANIELA:  Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Are there

         11  any questions?  Okay.  Thank all of you.

         12                 What we're going to do and I

         13  understand there's some dissention among the folks

         14  that are opposed to this, but let me explain what

         15  has happened here.  The only people that spoke pro

         16  on this issue was management and, of course, they

         17  are for it.  Three people as opposed to one person

         18  were allowed to speak in opposition to it and you

         19  will notice that I let them got over the two minute

         20  time.

         21                 So I think I have been more than

         22  fair. What we will do now is those people that have

         23  signed in to speak in favor of the bill only, come

         24  up to the microphone, state your name and say that

         25  you're in favor.  I hope you all remember who you
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          2  are.  And I'm watching.  We're going to vote right

          3  after this.

          4                 MS. LITTMAN:  My name is Shirley

          5  Littman.  I live in Penn South since 1984 and I'm in

          6  favor of this resolution.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

          8                 MS. LITTMAN:  Thank you.

          9                 MR. SIKORSKI:  Robert Sikorski.  I'm

         10  an attorney practicing in New York.  I'm a retired

         11  colonel in the Army National Guard.  I am not a

         12  Communist but I am in favor of Penn South.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         14                 MR. VANDERMELLI (phonetic):  My name

         15  is Harold Vandermelli.  I'm an original co-

         16  operator, as some of my esteemed opponents are, and

         17  I'm totally in favor because over the 41 years I've

         18  seen a very well- managed co- op go through lots of

         19  major projects such as this and we're living well

         20  and this is desperately needed.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay.  We're

         22  asking you just to come up just to say aye or nay,

         23  but thank you.

         24                 MS. SUKONECK (phonetic):  Hi.  My

         25  name is Gloria Sukoneck.  I was on the waiting list
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          2  for 13 years. I've been living there for 13 years,

          3  so I assume 13 is my lucky number and I am totally

          4  in favor of this.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

          6                 MS. ROBINSON:  My name is Bridget

          7  Oteri Robinson and I'm in favor of the increase.

          8  Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         10                 MS. REGAL:  My name is Rosalie Regal.

         11    I live in Penn South.  I am fortunate, lucky and

         12  ecstatic.  I am in favor.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         14                 MR. QUINN:  My name is Frank Quinn.

         15  I'm a senior and I'm very strongly in favor of the

         16  way the co- op has been run.  It has improved in

         17  appearance and now we're going to improve the

         18  infrastructure of our development.  As for senior

         19  citizens, it's especially important to me that we

         20  are able to redo our elevators.  It's a proposal

         21  before the Housing Department --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay.  Thank

         23  you.

         24                 MR. QUINN:  -- Will allow us to do.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  And you're
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          2  in favor. Thank you.

          3                 Those that are opposed will please,

          4  and have signed in, names that I have in my hand,

          5  will you please do the same.  Thank you.

          6                 MR. AUSLANDER:  My name is Jordan

          7  Auslander. Penn South is a wonderful place to live

          8  but there's a troubling lack of transparency in the

          9  capital budget process and for that I'm against

         10  this.  Other than that, it's a

         11  great place to live.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         13  Are there any other folks?  Okay.  Where are they?

         14                 MS. WALD:  My name is Pat Wald. I

         15  want to tell you I'm very much in favor of Penn

         16  South but not the way they run their fiscal affairs.

         17    Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         19  Is there anybody else?  We would like to vote on

         20  this today.

         21                 MS. DREYFUSS:  I just want to say

         22  that Penn South is all that we say it is.  It's a

         23  lovely -- I did not sign.  I just want to make one

         24  statement.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  We can't
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          2  have anyone.  Thank you very much, but...  Are you

          3  in favor or opposed or --

          4                 MS. DREYFUSS:  I am opposed to this.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay.  Thank

          6  you.

          7                 MS. DREYFUSS:  I also want to suggest

          8  that --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  No, I'm

         10  sorry, we can't take any more testimony.

         11                 Is there anyone else that signed in

         12  in opposition whose names I have in my hand that

         13  wanted to come up?  If not, we're now taking a vote

         14  on this from this committee.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Madam Chair,

         16  can I ask for a point of clarification from the part

         17  of the HPD in regard of the statements made in

         18  connection of the clarity of their finances?  Can

         19  you please testify to this issue and clarify it?

         20                 MS. WALPERT:  In terms of the

         21  finances, we actually have reviewed the finances and

         22  we're comfortable with this increase.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Would you

         24  just repeat your name again for the record.

         25                 MS. WALPERT:  I'm sorry, I'm Julie
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          2  Walpert. I'm the Assistant Commissioner of Housing

          3  Supervision.  We reviewed the finances with Penn

          4  South.  We know about the refinancing that they're

          5  about to do and we're in support of what they're

          6  proposing.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  And you have not

          8  found any particular misinformation, lack of

          9  information, unclarity in the information or

         10  wrongful doing?

         11                 MS. WALPERT:  No, we have not found

         12  anything like that.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         15  Okay. We'll now take the vote.  We're coupling all

         16  of the items. We'll take one vote.  M- 608 is being

         17  filed and we are voting on Reso. 907- A, Reso. No.

         18  911 and Intro. No. 420A -- 911 and Intro. No. 429.

         19                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Provenzano.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Yes on all.

         21                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Rivera.

         22                 (No response.)

         23                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Reyna.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Permission to

         25  explain my vote?  I just wanted to point out that
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          2  Intro. 429.  I'm voting in favor of this but I do

          3  believe that we need to improve the percentage of

          4  units that are reserved for low income occupants

          5  considering the crisis in housing and providing

          6  affordable housing for all New Yorkers, especially

          7  those in dire need due to a lack of income.  I vote

          8  aye also on the resolution presented before us.

          9                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Avella.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  Aye.

         11                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Brewer.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Excuse to

         13  explain my vote.  I certainly support Margerita

         14  Lopez' position on no block grant for Section 8 and

         15  I certainly support whatever Christine Quinn does on

         16  Mutual Redevelopment Houses.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Thank you.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  But I am

         19  going to abstain on 421- A because for 15 years when

         20  I worked on the City Council we were trying to

         21  figure out who got 421- A and we still don't seem to

         22  know.  I support the concept of course of affordable

         23  housing, but since the only projects that I know

         24  that ever got 421- A was the Donald Trump project in

         25  my district and he built the affordable with 8020,
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          2  not with 421- A.  I am not clear enough nor I think

          3  is anyone in the Council as to exactly what benefits

          4  have been derived and what kind of abatements the

          5  city has -- the taxpayers have dealt with as a

          6  result.  So I abstain on the 421- A. Thank you very

          7  much.

          8                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Comrie.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Aye on all.

         10                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Fidler.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Aye on all.

         12                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Jackson.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Aye on all.

         14                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Katz.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Aye on all.

         16                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Stewart.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Stewart

         18  votes aye all on all.

         19                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Oddo.

         20                 (No response.)

         21                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  By a vote of

         22  ten in the affirmative, zero in the negative, no

         23  abstentions.  All items are adopted with the

         24  exception of Intro. 429 which was adopted by a vote

         25  of nine in the affirmative, zero in the negative and
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          2  one abstention.

          3                 Council members, please sign the

          4  committee reports and the vote will be held open.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you

          6  all. We'll hold the vote open for two minutes.

          7                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Council Member

          8  Oddo.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Yes.

         10                 (Hearing concluded at 3:00 p.m.)
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